ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE RESOURCES STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 19, 2016
1:01 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative David Tal erico, Co-Chair
Representati ve Bob Herron
Representative Craig Johnson
Representative Kurt O son

Represent ati ve Paul Seaton

Represent ati ve Andy Josephson
Representative Geran Tarr

VEMBERS ABSENT

Represent ati ve Benj am n Nageak, Co-Chair
Representative M ke Hawker, Vice Chair

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 253

"An Act requiring the electronic filing of a tax return or
report with the Departnent of Revenue; establishing a civil
penalty for failure to electronically file a return or report;
relating to exenptions fromthe mning license tax; relating to
the mning license tax rate; relating to mning |icense
application, renewal, and fees; and providing for an effective
date."

- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 253

SHORT TI TLE: ELCTRNC TAX RETURN, M NI NG LI C.  TAX & FEES
SPONSOR(s) : RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

01/19/ 16 (H) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/ 19/ 16 (H) RES, FIN

02/ 15/ 16 (H) RES AT 1: 00 PM BARNES 124

02/ 15/ 16 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 15/ 16 (H) M NUTE( RES)

02/ 17/ 16 (H) RES AT 1: 00 PM BARNES 124

02/ 17/ 16 (H) Heard & Hel d

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -1- February 19, 2016



02/ 17/ 16 (H) M NUTE( RES)
02/ 19/ 16 (H) RES AT 1: 00 PM BARNES 124

W TNESS REG STER

SCOTT OGAN
Pal mer, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 253.

GRAHAM NEALE, Director

Center for Mne Training

School of Career Education

Uni versity of Al aska Sout heast

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 253.

Rl CHARD HUGHES
Fai r banks, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 253.

ROGER BURGGRAF
Fai r banks, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expressed his concerns with HB 253.

DONALD STEVENS, PhD

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Expressed his concerns wth HB 253, and
of fered suggestions on how mning in Al aska coul d be encouraged.

Bl LL JEFFRESS
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expressed his concerns with HB 253.

MARLEANA HALL, Executive Director

Resource Devel opnent Council for Alaska, Inc. (RDC
Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 253.

JASON BRUNE

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 253.
ROBERT FI THI AN, M ner

Lower Tonsina, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 253.

JULI A M CKLEY

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -2- February 19, 2016



Nort hern Al aska Environnmental Center (NAEC)
Fai r banks, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 253.

REBECCA LOGAN, General Manager

Al aska Support Industry Alliance

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expressed her organi zation's concerns wth
HB 253.

BEN MOHR
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expressed his concerns with HB 253.

RANDY POWELSON, Pl acer M ner
Fai r banks, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expressed his concerns with HB 253.

DOUG TVEET, Pl acer M ner

Co- owner, NB Tweet & Sons

Norme, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 253.

GEORCGE PI ERCE
Kasi | of, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 253.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
1: 01: 38 PM

COCHAIR DAVID TALERICO called the House Resources Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:01 p.m Representatives Tarr,
Josephson, Seaton, O son, Johnson, and Talerico were present at
the call to order. Representative Herron arrived as the neeting
was in progress.

HB 253- ELCTRNC TAX RETURN; M NING LIC.  TAX & FEES

1: 02: 33 PM

CO CHAIR TALERI CO announced that the only order of business
woul d be HOUSE BILL NO 253, "An Act requiring the electronic
filing of a tax return or report with the Departnent of Revenue;
establishing a civil penalty for failure to electronically file
a return or report; relating to exenptions from the mning

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 3- February 19, 2016



license tax; relating to the mning license tax rate; relating
to mning license application, renewal, and fees; and providing
for an effective date."

1: 03: 04 PM

CO CHAI R TALERI CO opened public testinony on HB 253.

1:04: 20 PM

SCOTT OGAN stated that he was testifying on behalf of hinself,
and related that although he is a nmenber of Al aska Mners

Association (AMA), he does not have any direct financial
interest in the outcone of the proposed |egislation other than
being a citizen of Al aska. He expressed his concern that the

focus of the legislature is to raise taxes and figure out how to
use permanent fund earnings and reduced pernmanent fund dividends
(PFDs), rather than the topic of his testinony. He referred to
a report that he had prepared when he served in the Al aska State
Legislature titled, "New Prograns in State Governnment 1981-
1998." He stated that Senator MCuire had additional work done
on the topic, and there is a new report that has since been
conpleted titled "Legislative Research Report Novenber 3, 2010,
11.018 New Prograns in State Governnment 1988-2011." He posited
that it is extrenely msguided to have the focus of the
financi al discussion be new taxes and use of the permanent fund.
One of the new taxes being discussed today is increased taxes on
the m ning industry.

MR. OGAN surmised the conmttee may be aware of new mning
prospects in the state. He recounted that while serving on the
House Resources Standing Commttee, he visited the Donlin Creek
prospect, where mllions of dollars had already been invested
and a canp set up. He said 20 years later they are still trying
to figure out whether the project is viable. M nes are capital
intensive, and the risk is high. He maintained that it would be
m sgui ded to add another layer of tax and uncertainty to the
m ning industry, which provides fantastic, high-paying jobs that
positively inpact |ocal economes. He proposed that rather than
| ooking for new taxes and ways to get into people's wallets, the
collective efforts of the legislature be focused on determning
exactly what type of basic, fundanmental governnment Al aska should
have. He said the cost of doing business in A aska wll always
be higher than in other states. He expressed appreciation for
government services, such as the Alaska State Troopers and
wi nter road maintenance, but contended that Al askans act |ike
"kids that grew up with a trust account” and will have to grow

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -4- February 19, 2016



up. He reenphasized that it is mnmisdirected for the starting
pl ace of the financial discussion to be new taxes and accessing
the permanent fund, which he said is the nobst regressive tax
possi bl e. He warned that this sends a nessage to potential
investors that Alaska is not a good place to do business right
NOw. He noted that commodity prices are down concurrent wth

the price of oil. He said it is premature to discuss a mning
tax, especially with regards to new investnents. He concl uded
that it is ill-advised to penalize people who are exploring now

and may provide a generation of jobs for young people in Al aska.
1:08:18 PM

REPRESENTATI VE OLSON asked if M. Ogan could provide copies of
the referenced report.

MR. OGAN agreed to provide the report. He said he would like to
see hearings on which parts of the statutes will be renoved from
the statute book, and advised that the constitution should be
the driver of that discussion.

REPRESENTATI VE TARR asked what inpact the tax mght have on
investment and noted that deterred investnment may be nore
closely linked to conmmodity prices than a tax increase, which
could be perceived as a relatively m nor change.

MR. OGAN replied he probably isn't qualified to answer that
specific question, but suggested it would be appropriate to have
an objective econonist conduct an analysis of the potential
i npacts of these taxes on the mning industry.

1:10: 10 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted the State of Alaska offers an
exploration tax credit for mning that is tied to production but
does not benefit investors. He noted that mnes receive a 50
percent tax credit only after going into production and becom ng
profitable and inquired how to incentivize the exploration and
devel opnental stages of mnes. He asked whether, since there is
no credit at the time of exploration or devel opnent, the tax
credit on production is actually an incentive.

MR. OGAN responded that it is certainly one of the conponents
t hat m ni ng conpani es consi der when considering devel opnent. He
stated that nobst conpanies operate worldwide and the tinme it
takes for a mne to go from exploration to production in Al aska
can be decades. He said his opinion is not as valuable as an

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 5- February 19, 2016



obj ective study by an econonist qualified to assess the inpact,
and added that he fought for and believes in the idea that
Al aska mnmust renmain open for business. He said what struck him
when he visited the Donlin Mne was the discussion regarding the
inmpact that hiring for the mne had on the social fabric of the

ar ea. He stated that it was a profound econom c devel opnent
program for the surrounding region and the sane held true for
the Red Dog m ne. He related that at first not many young

peopl e passed the drug and al cohol screenings, but, as benefits
[of the mnes] were visible in the communities, nore applicants

began passing the screenings. He stated that this inpact is
nore cost-effective than any governnment program welfare, or a
check from a village corporation. He reenphasized the

i nportance of not giving investors the inpression that Alaska is
not a good place to do busi ness.

1:14: 37 PM

GRAHAM NEALE, Director, Center for Mne Training, School of
Career Education, stated that the mssion of the University of
Al aska Southeast, Center for Mne Training (UAS/CMI), is to
provide world class workforce training in occupational fields
leading to enploynment in the mning industry. The gateway to
mning enploynent is the senester-long introduction to mning
occupation and operations class offered at University of Al aska
Sout heast (UAS), which has enrolled approximtely 200 students
since 2011. He said nost of the students are high school
students who are ready to train for and work in what should be a
devel opi ng wor kf orce. Al aska's mning industry has trenmendous
potential for growh, he noted, but that growmh can only occur
if projects are explored, permtted, and devel oped. He
acknowl edged the state's financial issues and said now is the
time to evaluate how the state can attract investnent in order
to multiply future revenues and econom c benefits.

MR. NEALE related his specific concern with the renoval of the
3.5-year tax exenption for new mnes, describing it as "a
shortcut to a problemthat doesn't exist." He said it would not
contribute nuch to state revenue, as there are not any |arge-
scale projects that are slated to becone new nines in the near
future. However, there are several advanced-stage projects in
the state that are anticipated to become future mnes and woul d
be forced to re-evaluate their feasibility in the absence of the
tax exenption. The UAS/CMI has been working with these projects
to develop training tinmelines and put Al askans on pathways to
m ning careers. He said, like any business, a mne's financia
| oad occurs at start up and during construction. I f these

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 6- February 19, 2016



projects are unfeasible to develop due to an initial tax-heavy
burden, the program could be putting Al askans on pathways to
careers that don't exist.

MR. NEALE warned that renoval of the 3.5-year exenption could
al so discourage investnent, not only in existing projects, but
also in any exploration activities. Investnent in the future of
Al aska's mning industry, and subsequent government revenues,
begins wth exploration, and many program students begin their
mning careers working on these types of projects near their
home comunities. Al aska conpetes for |imted global capital
with jurisdictions having conpetitive mnmineral potential in
fiscal terms. He said Alaska has excellent mneral potential,
one of the top-rated in the world, but a discouraging tax regine
does not nmake for attractive fiscal terns.

MR. NEALE said that as a University of Al aska enpl oyee, he woul d
be remss if he did not nmention a recent report from University
of Al aska Anchorage's Institute of Social and Econom c Research
(I SER) . The report researched the economc effects of Alaska's
fishing, tourism and mning industries and shows that m ning
revenue to the State of Alaska is 6-8 tinmes the cost of managi ng
the industry, and that mning pays its way in the state through
state governnent revenues, property taxes, Native corporation
revenues, services and supplies spending, and jobs. Al aska' s
m ners pay taxes and contribute to the econony, he added, so it
behooves Al aska to encourage investnent in devel opnent, because
it would offer nore opportunities for Alaskans to work in
Al askan mnes - precisely the mssion of the UAS/ CMI trai ning.

1:17: 39 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked whether M. Neale is a professor
or professor equivalent.

MR. NEALE replied he is the director. He explained that he does
not teach the courses and that there is an instructor on staff
who actually teaches the courses.

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON inquired if M. Neale's position was
equi valent to a provost, chancellor, or vice-chancellor.

MR. NEALE explained that he is the director of the program he
wor ks under the dean, who works under the provost.

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON remarked that M. Neale's testinony is
particularly interesting in that it could describe the entire

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -7- February 19, 2016



session. He explained the legislature's conundrum it is being
proposed that the University of Al aska' s undesignated general
fund (UGF) budget be cut by 20 percent, but to keep the
University's budget robust, the state needs revenue. He asked
how it is possible for the two conpeting demands to be net.

MR. NEALE answered that this specific university program is
primarily funded by industry donations or gifts, especially from
Hecla Greens Creek M ning Conpany. He said the program does
still receive funding fromrestricted funds, but the mgjority is
from i ndustry funding. He said he does not know the answer to
that question and he recognizes Alaska is in a difficult
situation and that there is no easy answer. He stated that
| ooki ng for shortcuts is also not an option.

1:19: 47 PM
REPRESENTATI VE TARR asked for the nane of the center.
MR. NEALE replied that it is the UAS/ CM.

REPRESENTATI VE TARR asked whether M. Neale was representing UAS
in an official capacity in presenting opposition to the proposed
| egi sl ati on.

MR. NEALE replied that he was representing the UAS/CMI in an
official capacity and that UAS/CMI is affiliated with UAS.

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON asked whether M. Neil Dbelieves the
proposed mineral licensing tax rates are conpetitive and would
stinmulate investnment in Al aska.

MR. NEALE stated he is not an econonist and does not know the
answer to the question.

1: 21: 24 PM

Rl CHARD HUGHES stated that although he is a nenber of the Al aska
M ners Association (AMA), he was representing hinself, as his
poi nts do not necessarily reflect those of the AMA. He said the
mning industry is currently depressed globally, not just in

Al aska. In relative terns, commobdity prices are as |ow as they
have been in a long tine, and this econom ¢ conundrum i s ongoi ng
and appears to be long-lived. M ning conpanies |ike Kinross

Gold Corporation, Barrick Gold Corporation, R o Tinto G oup,
Angl o Anmerican, and others are undergoing major restructuring,
which results in selling mnes, l|ayoffs, and other actions. He

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 8- February 19, 2016



stated that HB 253 would increase the mning license tax rate on
net inconmes over $100,000 by 29 percent. Additionally, the 3.5-
year hiatus that the mning industry currently enjoys for
capital recovery purposes would be elimnated. This woul d have
a significant effect on the econonmy of Alaska, he said,
especially on the placer mning industry. He opined that this
is not the best way to foster developnent of mnes wthin
Al aska. The growh potential for the mning industry in Al aska
is huge, but the state conpetes worldw de for revenue to explore
and develop mnes and increasing the tax rate wll discourage
i nvest nent . He noted that Argentina recently decreased its tax
rate by 5 percent to attract new mnes and said Al aska should
consi der doing the sane. He clarified he is not encouraging a
tax reduction, but stability in the mning |icense tax.

1: 24: 13 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TARR noted that seven mmjor nines are operating,
three are in the permtting stage, and seven are in the pre-
permtting process. She asked how HB 253 would affect those
mnes that are in the permtting or pre-permtting process.

MR HUGHES replied that the bill would have a discouraging
effect on exploration and could have a discouraging effect on
devel oping mnes, such as Donlin Creek or the Anbler project.
He pointed out that those mnes would have to undergo another
feasibility analysis given a tax increase if HB 253 passes.

1:25: 37 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON asked if the industry could withstand a
smal l er increase in the tax.

MR. HUGHES replied he cannot speak for the industry, but that
his personal opinion is the industry may be able to withstand a

smal | i ncrease. However, he continued, economes of the
expl oration and devel opnent i ndustries woul d change
significantly, and investnent in the Al aska will be discouraged.

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON asked whether M. Hughes would support a
scenari o where the 3.5-year exenption was retained and there was
a significantly smaller increase in the tax.

MR. HUGHES responded that he would have to | ook at the economc

i npact on each mne individually to accurately assess the inpact
of a change like that. He said it could drive narginal projects

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 9- February 19, 2016



toward a sub-econonmic state, and he stated that it is difficult
to give a definitive answer.

1:27:10 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted that the tax credit is not applied
during exploration and devel opnent but is deferred until the
devel oper designates the mne as profitable; therefore, all of
the currently devel oped mnes do not receive a benefit fromthat
until after they are actually turning a profit. He asked why
renoving the credit would be a burden on the exploration and
devel opnent process if the credit cannot even be applied during
t hose st ages.

MR. HUGHES answered it wll affect the feasibility study done
for a producing mne, and an increase in taxes will drive the
econom cs down. He posited that if Alaska wants to inprove
exploration, then permtting obstacles should be renoved.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON reiterated that the exploration tax credit
does not apply during exploration or devel opnent, and asked how
t hat encourages or accel erates exploration.

MR. HUGHES replied that the application of exploration incentive
tax credits inproves the economc feasibility of a project,
which attracts industry to the state.

1: 29: 56 PM

ROGER BURGGRAF testified that he recently represented the
Fai r banks Chanber of Commerce in Juneau and has been a long-tine
menber of the AMA, but is speaking today on behalf of hinself.
He held that the state should encourage developnent of its
natural resources and other industries, which would generate
revenue and put Alaskans to work. He expressed concern
regarding the proposed increase in mning taxes and explained
that the mning industry is very fragile and controlled by world
mar kets, over which it has no control. He said there are
several mning projects in the proposal stages that could be
adversely affected if the cost of permtting and developing a
m ne becones prohibitive. [ The proposed tax increase] could
affect both small and large mning operations. He noted that HB
253 would require electronic filing for all mning tax returns

and that many small mnes are located in renote areas;
therefore, it would be difficult for many of themto conply with
the requirenent. Renoval of the 3.5-year exenption would be a

significant disincentive to undertaking the regulatory process

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 10- February 19, 2016



and startup costs associated with devel oprment. He said the
current exenption provides an incentive to any mning conpany,
and assures that if a conpany does go into production it wll

recover sone of its expenses. Increasing the tax rate from 7
percent to 9 percent would cut deeply into the profit margins of
m ning conpani es. [ The proposed increase] is of particular

concern during tinmes when commodity prices are |ow and costs for
equi prent and fuel are high. He warned that increasing the tax

fees on exploration and mning applications will also increase
the burden on small mning conpanies. He said the mning
industry is already over-regulated, and urged the conmttee not
to "kill the goose that lays the golden egg," noting that the

i ndustry provides nany high-paying jobs to Al askans. He stated
that many of the smaller mnes contribute strongly to their
| ocal economi es.

1: 34: 27 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TARR noted the state's current tax structure has
been in place for over six decades, since 1955. She asked M.
Bur ggraf whether the industry expected that there would never be
a change in applicable tax statutes and if he believes [the tax
st at ut es] should be reevaluated when they beconme "that
historical in nature.”

MR. BURGGRAF replied that he did not consider the current tax
structure outdated, and he posited that the state needs to
attract capital in order to devel op m nes. He stated that when
taxes are increased, it is another financial factor that needs
to be considered by investors. Many of these projects are on
the drawing board and, if taxes are increased, smaller mnes
will have to reevaluate their viability. He pointed out that
many of the larger mnes don't have a huge margin, but if they
go into production they wll provide significant enploynent,
i ncome, infrastructure, and opportunities for Al askans.

REPRESENTATI VE TARR asked which mnes would be npst inpacted
and, specifically, what types of mnes could be categorized as
"smal | mnes."

MR. BURGGRAF replied that the placer mnes would be the snal

m nes nost influenced by these changes. He stated that placer
m ning was once a very large industry and the federal governnent
is making it very difficult for small placer mnes to operate.
The state |ooks favorably on placer mning and realizes that
pl acer mnes have a positive inpact on small commnities. He

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -11- February 19, 2016



noted that if the Donlin Creek and Tower Hill mnes nove into
production, they will positively influence rural conmmunities.

REPRESENTATI VE TARR pointed out that the tax increase would only
apply to mnes with a net incone of over $100,000, and asked
whet her many placer mnes would fall into that category.

MR. BURGGRAF replied that sonme would, depending on the size of
the placer mne and the nunber of enpl oyees.

1: 39: 18 PM

DONALD STEVENS, PhD, stated that he is a certified professiona
geol ogist from the University of Alaska Fairbanks (UAF) and has
worked full time in the mnerals exploration business in Al aska
since 1970, conducting field projects in nost areas of the state
that have mneral potential. He related that in 1981, he
di scovered the "Channel A Deposit" at Valdez Creek, which becane
the largest placer gold mne in North Arerica for several years.
He said over 1,200 man years of enploynent resulted from that
di scovery. He stated he was testifying on behalf of hinself and
not any of the professional organizations to which he bel ongs,
such as ANA. He said over the last 45 years he has observed a
nunber of cycles in the availability of exploration funding for

projects in Al aska. Much of that funding cones from other
countries, wth Canada being the principal source. Over the
last five years it has becone increasingly difficult to make a
living as a consulting geologist. He stated that the Pebble

Deposit is widely known in the global mning conmunity, and the
industry is aghast that developnent of this world-class deposit

was stopped. This has seriously damaged the industry's
perception of Alaska as a good place to invest in mnerals
expl orati on. He added that Shell's Chukchi Sea decision

simlarly hurt Al aska.

MR. STEVENS said that in Al aska the average length of tine
bet ween di scovery and actual production is probably the |ongest
in the Western Hem sphere, and is due to the slow regulatory
framework applied to m ning. He said he was devastated by news
of the potential 29 percent increase in the mning |license tax
and term nation of the 3.5-year exenption, and that the proposal
contributed to Alaska's negative reputation in the world's
m ning and investnent comunity. He held that in the last 45
years, this was the worst possible timng for this proposal.

MR. STEVENS explained that even during difficult tinmes for the
mning industry, mning pays its own way; state tax revenue from

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -12- February 19, 2016



mning is approximately eight times the cost of regulating the
i ndustry. He said for years his consulting business provided a
decent inconme, allowing him to offer the opportunity of a
col |l ege education to his two daughters. However, he conti nued,
business is now terrible - his clientele dropped from an average
of five foreign mning conpanies a year to less than one per
year over the last five years. He shared that his business has
cut every possible cost in an effort to remain viable and he
would like to see state governnent do the sane.

MR. STEVENS recommended the state decrease the mning |icense
tax to 5 percent, increase the 3.5-year exenption to 4 years

and publicize the actions anong m ning conpani es. He said this
would get the attention of the mning industry and do nore to
increase revenue from the exploration of mning than tax

increases or elimnation of exenptions. He said a single new
large mne going into production would create far nore tax
revenue for the state than the changes outlined in HB 253. I n

order to increase tax revenues, Alaska nust take actions
denonstrating that it wants a vibrant, strong mning industry.
He said this cannot be done by increasing mning taxes and
renovi ng the 3.5-year exenption for new m nes.

1: 43: 57 PM

BILL JEFFRESS stated he has been involved 1in resource
devel opnment and mining for over 40 years and actively involved
in Alaska mning for alnost 25 years. He said he has worked for
several of the major mning conpanies in Al aska, served as
former Director of the Ofice of Project Managenent & Permtting
for the Departnent of Natural Resources, and worked as a m ning
consultant. He related he is a nmenber of the AMA and is honored
to serve as a nenber of the Alaska Mnerals Comm ssion. As a
menber of the Alaska M nerals Comm ssion, he noted, he supported
the conmission's top 2016 priority for Alaska to nove quickly,
on a bipartisan basis, to establish a stable fiscal climte that
will protect Alaska's future and the opportunity to develop a
di verse econony.

MR. JEFFRESS said he found the Departnent of Revenue's February
3, 2016, testinmony on HB 253 and its conpanion bill SB 137
di sconcerting. He recounted that the testinony discussed a
perception by the public that the mning industry is not paying
its share; to which the Departnent of Revenue responded that if
the public does not view the mning industry as paying its way,
it would help if the mnes are paying nore taxes. He stated he
was certain that Departnment of Revenue enployees are thankful

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 13- February 19, 2016



their salaries are not based on public perception. Ref er enci ng
t he Decenber 2015 |ISER report, he stated that the average state
revenue from mning was $96.4 nillion, while state operating

expenditures were $10.7 mllion, wth an average capita
expenditure of $4 million, which resulted in a surplus of $81.7
mllion and $22.5 million in average nmunicipal revenues. He

stated that this indicates that the mning industry 1is
definitely contributing nore to the state than it costs to
adm nister the program and provide oversight of the industry.
The global mning industry and the industries that provide
support to it are currently experiencing a long downturn in
comodity prices. He said the proposed increase in the mning
license tax, from 7 percent to 9 percent, results in a 29
percent higher paynent for operations.

MR. JEFFRESS held that losing the 3.5-year exenption on paying
the tax after production begins is not the kind of nessage that
Al aska should be sending to potential investors. He said Al aska
conpetes with other states and nations for investnent dollars
based on regulatory and fiscal certainty. Al aska's m ning
i ndustry has trenendous potential for growth, which is already
denonstrated by the operating mnes, and has huge potential to
generate revenues and economc benefits for Al aska. He
mai ntai ned that HB 253 sends a nessage that Al aska's policies
are based on perception, not real-wrld economc reality.

1: 47: 27 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TARR stated she would like to talk to the
previ ous two witnesses off |ine.

1: 48: 02 PM

MARLEANA HALL, Executive Director, Resource Devel opnment Counci
for Alaska (RDC), said RDC is a nenbership funded, statew de
busi ness association representing the tourism forest products,
oil and gas, mning, and fishing industries. She spoke as
foll ows:

RDC strongly opposes HB 253 as this is clearly not the
time to raise taxes on Alaska’'s mning industry. The
mning industry 1is suffering through a deep and
pr ol onged downt urn in comuodity prices whil e
devel opment and operating costs continue to rise. In
fact, the mning sector has been in a deep gl obal
recession for at least the last four years. Conpanies
are cutting budgets and nmeking tough investnent

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -14- February 19, 2016



deci si ons. Future prospects and projects in Al aska
are at risk. Exploration activities are sharply down.

I ncreasing taxes on the industry at this tine wll
conmpound a bad situation and risks halting investnent

in future projects that wll wultimtely create new
revenue streans for Al aska. Conversely, the nore
Al aska taxes conpanies to produce a comodity, the
less Ilikely a conpany wll i nvest in future

production. HB 253 noves us in the wong direction.

As you've heard, the bill proposing to increase the
Alaska Mning License Tax paynent by 29 percent
renoves the 3.5-year exenption designed to attract new
m nes. Not only does renoving the exenption offer no
imrediate or near-term revenue for the state, it
potentially inpacts the feasibility of future mning
proj ects. [ The state] should not risk projects and
the corresponding jobs and increased private sector
econom c activity. One large mne would bring in nore
revenue to the state than what is estimated to be
generated by this flawed bill.

A mgjor concern RDC has with HB 253 is that the
adm ni stration has not conducted a risk analysis on
the bill’s inpact on the mning industry. The effect
of this tax proposal nust be fully reviewed, and
uni nt ended consequences, including potential inpact on
future investnent, nust be consi dered.

| would like to point out that the mning industry
pays its way in Alaska and is a revenue producer for
the state. Moreover, it is the |argest producer of
revenue for the Northwest Arctic Borough and the
| ar gest payer of property taxes in the Fairbanks North
Star Borough and the City and Borough of Juneau. For
nore than 20 years RDC has advocated for a long-term
fiscal plan, including efforts to limt wunrestricted
general fund spending to a sustainable |evel, support
some use of the permanent fund earnings as part of a
fiscal plan, and a tax policy and incentives that
encourage future investnment in Alaska's resource
i ndustri es.

In closing, HB 253 will harm the industry at a tine

when it is struggling with low comobdity prices and
tight capital ... markets. The industry is not asking

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -15- February 19, 2016



for a decrease in taxes during this comodity bear
market, |ike other countries are considering as you
heard wearlier, but instead asking, as the state
considers changes to tax policy, that the state do no
har m

1:51: 12 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TARR inquired whether M. Hall thought every
provision in HB 253 was probl emati c.

M5. HALL responded that the components of the bill that she did
not nention are not sonething RDC necessarily opposes, for
exanple the electronic filing, although it has not been fully
vetted and RDC would appreciate it if a risk-analysis were
conduct ed.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted the mining |license tax was conputed
based on net incone, which is conputed by subtracting expenses
from revenues. The sanme forrmula was used for the royalty
paynent. The oil and gas industry in Al aska pays its royalty on
the point of production, the fisheries industry pays on the
first wholesale value - the value of the resource to Alaska -
and that applies to nost industries that have a royalty. In
this instance, the royalty is not based on the value of the
mnerals extracted, but instead based on the profitability of
t he conpany. He asked, recognizing that nost of the industries
Ms. Hall represents are based on net snelt return or point of
production value, whether RDC opposes the state collecting
royal ties based on the value at the point of production.

M5. HALL replied she would get back to the commttee with an
answer, but suggested that the industry mght be better able to
answer that directly when it testifies before the commttee.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON expl ai ned that part of the purpose behind
his question was to make sure that the industry is aware of it
when they testify before the commttee.

1:54: 24 PM

JASON BRUNE said he was testifying on behalf of hinself. He
stated that the cost of doing business in any jurisdiction
matters and Alaska is no different. Gven the state's
renoteness, for mnes to cone to fruition in Alaska, huge
capital projects nust also be constructed to bring necessary
infrastructure such as road, power, ports, pipelines, and much

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 16- February 19, 2016



nor e. He said these costs are not insignificant and add to the
costs of building a mne in Al aska, especially in rural Al aska.

Sinply put, taxes are just another cost of doing business. He
said HB 253 proposes to increase the tax rate by 29 percent
which will not help attract investors to our state; it will show

that Al aska is not open for business.

MR BRUNE stated that his authority on the issue is derived from
being a casualty of higher costs, which caused his previous
enpl oyer, Anglo Anerican, to w thdraw from Al aska. Hi gh costs
were one of the |eading factors which lead to its w thdrawal and
the loss of his job. He stated that Al aska conpetes worl dw de
for capital, and he saw it first hand in Anglo-Anerican's
boardroom in London. He nmintained that rather than considering
this legislation, Al aska should grow the mning industry. He
said his former project has and Econom c Inpact Analysis on its
website, which shows the ampbunt of tax revenue the state would
collect fromthat project going into production could be nearly
$200 million per year to both state and |ocal governments. He
said adding this single mne, or even a nunber of new mnes
woul d provide nore mning industry revenue to the state than the
proposed legislation would, wth the additional benefit of
provi di ng jobs for thousands of Al askans.

MR. BRUNE posited that Al aska should be doing all it can to
encourage this kind of developnent in the state, which would be
executed wth high levels of care for the environment.
Alternatively, if Al aska increases taxes, as proposed in HB 253,
it would send a nessage that Alaska is an expensive place to
conduct business and would discourage conpanies from doing
busi ness here. He held that even passing HB 253 out of
commttee woul d negatively inpact Alaska' s investnent climate.

1:57:18 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TARR noted that British Col unbia has a 13 percent
net proceeds tax and a lot of mning activity. She requested
M. Brune to conment on that with regard to other opportunities
outside the U S. She asked what inpact |ow comodity prices may
have had on M. Brune's forner enployer's decision to scale back
operation in Al aska.

MR. BRUNE responded it is inmportant to look at the existing
infrastructure in British Colunbia and other jurisdictions

around the world. In those instances infrastructure is not
sonmething that the industry would have to cover. [British
Col unbi a and ot her jurisdictions] have significant

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -17- February 19, 2016



infrastructure that has already been paid for, often by the

gover nment . Rural Al askan projects have to be huge projects in
order to cover <costs |ike ports, 100-mle roads, 300-mle
pi pelines, and all of the added infrastructure. The tax adds to
the cost of doing business. Al aska already has one of the
hi ghest costs worldw de, and thus can't afford to have higher
tax rates than the rest of the world. Wth regard to the

guestion of comobdity prices, M. Brune stated conpanies |ike
Angl o American are in it for the long haul; they understand that
there are ups and downs in the commodity cycle and meke their
busi ness cal cul ati ons based on a mne |ife of 20-40 years. They
anticipate the wups and downs of the conmmodity cycle and
understand that it nust be factored into their equations. He
agreed that [commodities] are in a downturn that has |asted nuch
| onger than nost, and offered his belief that although the
downturn inpacted [the conpany], ultimately it did not inpact
their decision to | eave Al aska.

1: 59: 48 PM

ROBERT FI THIAN, Mner, stated he is representing hinself and is
opposed to HB 253 for reasons he feels are in the best interest
of Al aska. He said he has been involved in Alaska' s mneral
industry for many years and is currently working to develop a
new, underground hard-rock gold mne in Southeast Al aska. Thi s
mne should conplete its permtting and begin underground
devel opnent this year, and that it will provide direct, |ocal-
hire, annual enploynent opportunities at the standard m ning
sector conpensation of $100,000 per vyear, wth exceptional
benefits. He stated that when reviewing the many aspects of
building a new mne in Alaska, the 3.5-year tax exenption for
new mnes was one of the few aspects that weighed in on the
positive side of the many chall enges. He said the current 7
percent license tax was high relative to the risk and chall enges
that mners deal with, but seened doable. He stated that the
increase to 9 percent would increase the tax burden by 28
percent, which he considers a serious overreach. Wt hout the
new mne exenption and proposed tax increase, he said he
possi bly, not probably, would have nmde the decision to npve
forward with the nmuch-needed project, which is located near a
community that needs jobs, [an inproved] econony, and children
for its school. He stated that after many years of nmajor m ning
conpanies exploring Alaska for Jlarge mneral deposits, many
smal l er deposits, which are not viable for |larger operators,
have been defi ned. These deposits can becone environnentally
friendly, smaller-scale mnes and strong economc drivers for
Al aska. He held that if the new m ne exenption were renoved and

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 18- February 19, 2016



taxes increased, these projects would becone nmuch |ess viable
and probabl e. He noted that there are vast differences between
sectors of the mning industry, and mnerals in particular,
t hroughout the state. A mneral deposit |located near
infrastructure will have different viability than a conparable
deposit located in a renote region. One may be able to afford
new tax burdens, while the other nmay not becone a mne despite
being located in a region in need of jobs and econony.

MR. FITH AN recalled the Fort Knox mne as an exanple of the
fine line between viability and non-viability, as it was worKking

through its feasibility stages. He stated that had this
proposed tax Ilevel been in place at the tinme, it would
unquestionably have affected the decision to nove forward or
not . He noted that this mine has been a boon for Al aska. The
challenges for mners, and especially new mners in today's
world, are extrene. He encouraged the committee to take no
action on the proposed renoval of the new m ne exenption and the
mning tax increase, in order to allow the entrepreneurial
spirit that has benefitted Alaska in many ways to continue to do
So. Wel | -paying jobs and reciprocal service industry econony
are nore inportant than an additional squeeze on a challenged
i ndustry. He suggested that the conmttee focus on risk

investnment, the wultinmate factor in developing many natural
resources, and posed the question, "Do your actions maintain a
prudent wi ndow for risk investnment?" He stated his belief that
HB 253 works to close that w ndow for Alaska projects. He
stated that he agreed wth M. Stevens' comments about
decreasing the tax rate and increasing the new nine exenption.

2: 03: 59 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON requested the location of M. Fithian's
m ne i n Sout heast.

MR. FITHI AN answered the mne is called the Dawson Mne and is
| ocated on the Hollis-Kl awock H ghway near Hollis on Prince of
Wal es | sl and.

2:04: 28 PM
REPRESENTATI VE TARR referenced M. Fithian's statenent that a
tax increase would have made him reconsider the viability of his

m ne, and she asked how increased commodity prices would have
factored in to his decision nmaking process.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -19- February 19, 2016



MR. FITH AN responded that Alaska's balance and the gl obal
bal ance for operating and producing mnes frequently hinges on
mar ket val ues, which are nearly inpossible to forecast. Hi s
proj ect calculations were based on a $1,100 value for gold. | f
gold values drop below that price, the project would becone
chal | enged. If gold prices remain above that point, the mne
woul d stay viabl e. He recalled operating a mne many years ago
where the sanme figure was $340; if gold dropped below $340 he

was | osing noney. If gold prices held at $400 or above, the
m ne was profitable. He noted that mnes do not have control
over commodity prices, especially small mnes. He held that

Al aska holds promse for small mne operators and he hopes to
provi de an exanple of how small to nedium size mnes can prove
viable in Al aska. He stated that dealing with world markets is

a challenge; each deposit is different in terns of both
operating costs and met al | ur gi cal ci rcunst ances. He
reenphasi zed the vast differences that exist with nmany aspects
of the same netal commodity. He stated that Donlin Creek is
dealing with a refractory ore, which demands high energy to
extract gold from the ore. He stated that he will be dealing
with a free-milling gold and quartz deposit on Prince of Wales.

He noted that they are entirely different concepts, but both are
still dependent on world narkets.

2:07: 07 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted the mning license tax is based on
net incone and assuned that [M. Fithian] had taken the
difference into account. He asked if increasing the threshold
for the 9 percent tax from $100, 000 net incone to $200, 000 woul d
be nore acceptable and dimnish the inpact on the smaller, nore
mar gi nal operati ons. He explained that in this circunstance,
the tax would be 5 percent from $50,000 to $200, 000.

MR. FITHI AN replied that he would |ike to answer, but would |ike
nore tine to evaluate the considerations. He offered that the
industry may want to weigh in on that question when it testifies
during the next neeting. He stated that he would be glad to
answer the question via e-mail.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted he was asking the question wthout
expectation of an imediate answer, and asked that M. Fithian
send the e-mail to Co-Chair Talerico, who could then distribute

it to the rest of the commttee nenbers. He stated that the
bill was designed to be balanced and provide a structure that
woul d be functional for both the State of Al aska and the m ning
industry, which is a very valuable industry. He asked M.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 20- February 19, 2016



Fithian to include in the e-mail any other suggestions he m ght
have on how the bill could be structured.

2:09:57 PM

JULIA M CKLEY, Northern Al aska Environnental Center, posited
that the current tax structure is outdated, and said she would
like to see it addressed. Devel opnment does not cone wthout a
cost, she stated, and the public should be conpensated for the
mnerals renmoved from public |ands. Royal ties should be
structured to provide real returns to the public and provide
conpensation for the inevitable environnental degradation. She
indicated that she would |ike to see an even higher tax
structure inplenented. M ning pays a very small percentage of
state revenues, especially when conpared to the oil industry,
and this anmount needs to be increased. She stated that the
proposed 2 percent increase, only on the nost profitable mnes,
is not enough. Al'l portions of the mning industry in Al aska
should pay increased taxes and the nost profitable should be
increased by 5 percent so that Alaska's tax structure is nore in

line with other states, |ike South Dakota. She pointed out that
the |I1SER report does not include infrastructure costs, such as
road construction and naintenance. She pointed to the Anbler

Road as an exanple of these types of costs.

REPRESENTATI VE TARR requested that M. Mckley share the
i nformati on she referenced on South Dakota's m ning tax.

M5. M CKLEY responded that South Dakota taxes its mning
conpanies at 14 percent, which is 5 percent higher than the
proposed i ncrease.

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON noted that there is nore infrastructure
needed in Alaska, as everything is nmuch closer in South Dakot a.
He asked Ms. Mckley to clarify her point about infrastructure.

M5. M CKLEY said Representative Josephson's point is reasonable;
however, she pointed out that the proposed Anbler Road to the
Anbler Mning District would cost the State of Al aska $430
mllion, but the proposed tax would only provide an estimted $6
mllion, leaving a $424 nmillion cost to the state.

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON understood M. Mckley's point and
t hanked her for her testinony.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked which organization M. M ckley
represents.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -21- February 19, 2016



M5. MCKLEY said she is representing the Northern Al aska
Envi ronnmental Center.

2:13: 02 PM

REBECCA LOGAN, General Manager, Al aska Support Industry Alliance
("the Alliance"), testified that the Aliance represents 680
Al aska busi nesses and the 30,000 enployees that provide support
services to oil, gas, and mning operations in Al aska. She
noted that HB 253 has been identified by Governor Wil ker as an
i ntegral conponent of the new sustainable Al aska plan, which is
billed as providing a balanced and sustainable budget for
Al aska's long-term fiscal stability. Wile the Alliance
appreci ates the governor's efforts to address Al aska's spending
problem it is concerned about bills like HB 253 that have a
singular focus on raising new revenues in the short-term

wi t hout assessing potential Ilong-term inpacts on the state
econony. Al aska needs to take a long-term budget view, she
opined, not a one-year snapshot. As resource devel opnent

conpani es plan projects and identify areas to invest, they use a
| ong-term bal anced approach that accomobdates the highs and
| ows of commodity cycles, and Al aska should do the sane. Li ke
the oil and gas industry, the mning industry is experiencing a
downturn in comodity prices and is not in a position to
shoul der additional costs through taxes. There is no vision for

Al aska's future resource devel opnment econony in a tax bill that
does not assess the inpacts of that tax on the private sector.
She posed the question to the commttee: "Do we, as Al askans,

want sl ow economc progress in a |low comodity environnment, or
do we want no econom c progress?”

2:14:59 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON stated that this is the fourth bill in
the fiscal plan that he has |ooked at that calls for new noney
from industry, noting that the alcohol bill is a consunmer tax,

but it does inpact industry. He said there has been push back
on all of them which he said he understands, but he stated his
concern that at the end of the day, all that would be |left would
be taxes on individuals or a cut to the PFD. He asked M.
Logan's opinion of the governor's plan that everyone share in
the state's econom c burden.

MS. LOGAN stated that if it was true that everyone was going to

share in the burden, she would support the governor's plan. She
said she would be very interested in seeing [proof of such

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -22- February 19, 2016



shared burden] and added that the industry is already making
significant paynents to the State of Al aska. She enphasi zed
that industry is frustrated that the Ilegislature, instead of
reducing the operating costs of state governnment, is turning
i mredi ately to industry to solve its problem

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON comented that the focus of the
| egi sl ati ve session so far has been on budget cuts. There have
been hearings on revenue, but cutting has been the focus. He
asked Ms. Logan if she was aware of that.

M5. LOGAN responded she was aware that people were saying
cutting was the focus of the session, but she had not yet seen
t he proposed budget to assess the state of reductions prom sed.

2:16: 57 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON pointed out that the proposed increases
are not legislatively driven, but are instead proposals fromthe
admnistration and it is the duty of the legislature to review
them He said it does not mean that any of the proposals would
go anywhere, but he wanted to be clear that HB 253 was not a
| egi slatively driven agenda.

2:17: 22 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said several people had given testinony
stating that no action should be taken until an econom c i npact
analysis has been conducted for a proposed change, but
guestioned the possibility of getting a definitive study
conducted due to the variable nature of comodity prices.
Noting the Fraser Report provides conparative tax figures for
Al aska and other states, he asked about the feasibility of
conducting a conprehensive economc study that would indicate
how t he proposed mning tax increase from 7 percent to 9 percent
woul d i npact the cl osed-door decision making of the industry.

M5. LOGAN responded that she has seen several |SER studies that
examne different financial scenarios and tax structures and
their potential influence on the private sector. She said it is
as sinple as finding an economist to examne that specific
questi on.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON inquired if, given a scenario where an

| SER study found that changing the tax rate from 7 percent to 9
percent would have little decisional influence on whether or not

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 23- February 19, 2016



to proceed with a mne, M. Logan would be in favor of the
| egi sl ature proceeding with the proposed | egislation.

M5. LOGAN replied, "Absolutely not." Following results 1like
that, she continued, there would be enough information to answer
the question whether the best decision would be to raise $6
mllion in taxes on the mning industry or to reduce operating
expenses in state government by $6 mllion dollars.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON offered his hope that testifiers would
refine the answer to that question. He noted that formerly many
had suggested there should be a docunent defining the econonic
i mpact this tax change woul d have on industry behavior. Now he
was hearing that testifiers aren't looking for that i npact
study, but rather a study exam ning the conparative value of the
opti ons: cutting PFDs, cutting the University of Al aska budget
by $6 nmillion, or other neasures. Those are quite different
studi es, he pointed out.

M5. LOGAN responded that her previous statenment was not nade on
behal f of the Alliance, but rather she was saying that the state
needs a long-term plan that addresses the needs of the
government and private sector, and that this was a short-term
answer and there was not information to assess whether it was
t he best answer.

2:21:37 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TARR referenced the portion of M. Logan's
testinmony that discussed singling out the mning industry, and
said testinony fromthe fishing industry indicated a willingness
to contribute to solving the problem provided they were not
unfairly burdened. She asked Ms. Logan to explain how the
mning industry saw itself differently. She acknow edged Ms.
Logan's long-term service in the industry and the 6l-year tine
period since Alaska had changed the mning tax structure, and
asked if people thought it would never change. She stated that
she would like to understand when people thought that it m ght
be updated, considering it has been nore than six decades.

M5. LOGAN clarified she had not said anything about singling out
the mning industry, but instead said the singular focus of this
bill was to raise revenue, wthout consideration of the inpact
on the private sector. She stated that she would not assess the
need to change a tax based on how long it had been in place
The nore appropriate assessnent would be whether or not it was
doi ng what it shoul d.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 24- February 19, 2016



REPRESENTATI VE TARR stated that state government has changed
dramatically in 61 years and that's the reason for reassessing
whet her these taxes were working properly at this tine.

2:23: 35 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON conment ed that because the |egislature had
no choice, it would reduce governnent services that would inpact
the lives of all Al askans. He noted the budget proposal was
from the governor and was being considered by the |egislature.
Al t hough studies from sources such as |SER exist, when special
i nterest groups, such as the Alliance, testify, they frequently
bring their own [studies]. He asked if the industry could
provi de any studies supporting the stance that raising the tax
rate from 7 percent to 9 percent does not mnake sense. He said
the legislature does not need to contract an independent study,
but rather that industry should provide its own justification as
to why the tax is regressive if they think it is.

M5. LOGAN allowed she may have m sunderstood the question and
clarified she does not represent the mning industry but rather
represents support industries to the mnmning industry. She
suggested that the nunber of jobs being lost in a | ow conmodity
environment is good evidence that cones fromindustry. She also
stated that the policy and philosophy that the group she
represents adheres to is that increased taxes deter investnent.
She said the nenbers of the support industry are not econom sts
and would not have access to the type of mning industry
information for which Representative Herron was asking.

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON acknowl edged Ms. Logan's response and
clarified the industry he had referenced was the support
i ndustry. He explained that the legislature needs nore
information, specifically how individual support industries
woul d be directly affected by the tax increase proposed under HB
253. He said the l|egislature does not have time to conduct
anal yses of the potential effects of the tax increase specific
to the support industries.

M5. LOGAN replied it is likely the Alliance could identify the
potential inpact of a tax increase on many nenber conpani es.

2:27: 48 PM

BEN MOHR stated he is testifying on his own behalf. The mning
i ndustry, Ilike many commodities, is in a prolonged slunp, he

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 25- February 19, 2016



said. He said M. Brune's conpany was the financial and capita
partner in a project in which he was invol ved. When commodity
prices and other factors came in to play, the conpany didn't
just scale back in Alaska, it left. Wen the conpany left, M.
Brune was one of hundreds of Al askans who suffered as a result.
He recounted that earlier in the day he was at his office, and
told a coworker that he intended to take sonme time off to
testify on a mning bill. The coworker inquired as to M.
Mohr's premise, to which he replied, "How do you get nore bl ood
froma turnip?" He stated that the answer in this case is, "You
have to have nore turnips.” He said the state can't get much
nore blood from the industry; the margins that the mning
i ndustry operates on are pretty slimin the first place. Thin
mar gi ns conbi ned with upfront capital expenses and the numnerous
regulatory and public affairs hurdles that exist in Al aska
create a challenging business environnent. He stated that
people do want to mne in Al aska and the state has incredible
resources, but the public policy perception by investors does
not cone close to matching the resources present. I ncr easi ng
the state's mning taxes doesn't attract investors, it raises
the hurdles. Decreasing the period of tinme that m nes can enjoy
tax relief before starting to pay does not encourage investnent
in the state. Alaska will not receive new investnent by making
t he changes that would be inplied by HB 253, he posited.

2:30:44 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TARR asked for clarification regarding what M.
Mohr meant by his comment that the public policy perception does
not match the opportunity, in light of the fact that Al aska has
not changed its mning tax policy for 61 years. She asked where
the public policy perception has gone w ong.

MR MHR referenced the 2014 Fraser Institute Report, which
conducted an inventory of mning industry perceptions toward 122
jurisdictions worldwi de. He said the report ranked Al aska tenth
worldwide in terns of investnment attractiveness but twenty-
seventh in ternms of public policy perception, which includes tax
and regul atory hurdl es.

2:31: 34 PM
REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked for clarification regarding the

factors contributing to the rank of twenty-seventh in the public
policy perception category.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 26- February 19, 2016



MR MOHR confirmed that tax and regulatory hurdles are two
conponents within the public policy perception section of the
report. He offered to follow up on the question.

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON commented that Al aska has not changed
the mning tax since right after the Korean War; therefore, it
nmust be regulatory policy that has caused the drop in rank from
tenth to twenty-seventh.

MR MOHR clarified that the 2014 Fraser Institute Report that
ranked Al aska twenty-seventh under "Public Policy Perception by
| nvestors” was based on 2013 data. He said he assunmed the
perception was driven by the legislature's treatnent of oil and
gas policy at the tinme and the thought that the mning industry
m ght be next.

2:33: 32 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON requested that M. Mhr forward the
appl i cabl e pages of the Fraser Institute Report to the chair for
distribution to the conmttee.

MR. MOHR agreed to forward the docunents.
2:34: 07 PM

RANDY POWELSON, Placer Mner, stated he is a mning engineer,
has been in the mning industry for over 20 years, and has
wor ked for several different size conpanies, ranging from snall
to |arge. He currently runs a small, famly owned placer mne
and has work experience in a variety of mning operations. He
said Alaska has a resource based econony; the state cannot
survive on tourism or manufacturing. G ven Al aska's geographic
| ocation it is only economcal for the state to develop its
resources, and if Alaska is going to survive it nust do that.
He explained that placer mners, like him are "price takers,
not price nmakers." Placer nminers are subject to the variability
of their market.

MR. PONELSON noted he has listened to several conments about
m nes becom ng profitable, but pointed out that Kensington is
the only major new mne in the state in the past ten years. He
posited that if mnes were profitable, there would be nore | arge

and small mnes in the state; therefore, mnes are marginal. He
said he opposes the renoval of the 3.5-year exenption. As a
smal|l placer mner, banks will not lend to him for equipnent
purchases, so he nust finance out of personal savings. He

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -27- February 19, 2016



purchased and financed alnost $150,000 in equipnent over a
period of years, and if he had to pay taxes during the start-up
years it would have nmade his operation unecononi cal.

MR. PONELSON stated his opposition to increasing the licensing
tax from 7 percent to 9 percent. The problem with referencing
the 1955 tax as outdated, he posited, is that it may have been a
high tax when it was inplenented. He added that it may not be a
tax issue so nuch as a regulatory issue. In 1955 the Surface
M ning Control and Reclamation Act of 1977 (SMCRA) and the C ean
Water Act (CWA) did not exist, the U S Arny Corps of Engineers
(USACE) was not charging thousands of dollars for wetlands
di sturbances, and conservation banks did not exist, all of which
are problens that nodern mners have to address. Anytinme a
smal | busi ness owner hires a new enployee, the rule of thunb is
that 50 percent is added to the enployee's wages for payroll
t axes and over head. Even if the tax hasn't changed since 1955,
everything else in the world has, which nmakes it unecononi cal.

MR. POWNELSON said he spent over $50,000 in Fairbanks |ast year
on supplies and materials and makes a point of buying from
| ocally-owned and run businesses, not conglonerates, in an
effort to keep noney in the community. He gave the exanple of a
sporting event comng to a towmn and every dollar spent in
association with the event turning over three or four tinmes in
the community. He said if this adage holds true then his
single-fam|ly mning operation produced $150, 000-$200,000 worth
of benefit to the Fairbanks comunity. He said there are ways
for the state to generate revenue. For exanple, sonetine between
2010 and 2012, the Departnent of Transportation & Public
Facilities (DOT&PF) put out a gravel crushing contract between
Chitina and MCarthy near highway mle 52. The University of
Al aska Fairbanks (UAF) is a land grant wuniversity, it 1is
supposed to use that noney and land to pay for UAF s operation
The wuniversity chose not to lease the gravel pit to DOT&PF
After six nonths of negotiation and an offer to pay six tines
the going rate for the gravel, UAF turned down $200, 000 worth of
royalties. Conversely, the Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority
(AMHTA) actively uses its land to create revenue.

2:39:31 PM

MR. PONELSON said mning is a significant contributor to AVHTA
He said taxes are a punitive, regressive form of increasing
revenue; every tinme noney is taken from one [industry] it makes
that occupation |ess attractive. He conpared taxes to a big
rubber band and recounted that a few years ago the state thought

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 28- February 19, 2016



it wuld be wise to tax the "rich" cruise ship industry, and
cruise ship activity in Alaska and the associated revenue
plumeted as a result. That regressive tax was repealed. He
predicted the same pattern would occur in the mning industry.
He suggested the state find a way to tax everyone, not just the
m ners, perhaps in the formof a small tax on cell phones, which
could be considered either necessities or |uxuries. If there
are 400,000 cell phones in the state, a tax rate of $1.25 per
nmonth would raise $6 mllion. Such a tax, spread across the
entire state and all its citizens, wuld be a fairly small
amount conpared to the $45.00 to $90.00 per nonth that people
pay for cell phones. He provided the exanple of the Yukon
Territory's aggressive pronotion of the mning industry, because
the Yukon Territory realizes that mning brings in noney rather
t han costs noney.

2:41: 48 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON said the nost conpelling portion of M.
Powel son's testinony was his explanation of the vast increase in
regul atory authority over the mning industry since 1955. He
commented that the University of Al aska (UA) generated five
times nore noney than AVHTA and UA owns a |and area equival ent
to the island of Ml okai, Hawaii .

MR. PONELSON allowed that Representative Josephson's statenent
could be true. He said when he hears about UA claimng to have
financial problems on the news it bothers him because he knows
that UA has turned down a significant anount of cash fl ow.

2:42: 46 PM
REPRESENTATI VE TARR stated her appreciation for M. Powelson's

views on what has changed in Al askan m ning since 1955, but said
it is inportant to distinguish between federal and state

regul atory requirenments, as well as the differences between
federal and state | and. She said it would be interesting to
hear from M. Powel son on whether there are regulatory

chal | enges specific to state | and.

MR. POWNELSON replied that nany of the federal regulations apply

on state land. In terns of permtting, he said a person in 1955
could sinply start mning; whereas, now it takes anywhere from5
to 15 permts and the associated record keeping. For exanpl e,

for water quality nonitoring the state requires a turbidity test
unit that costs about $750. However, the state does not accept
as a replacenent a turbidity tube, which is a $35.00 piece of

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 29- February 19, 2016



plastic with a slide rule on it. Wiile the tax may be from
1955, all the other cumulative effects of regulation are
massi ve. He maintained that saying sonething is bad because it
is old is not valid, especially when considering all the costs

associated with mning operations. As a private business nman
and a small, famly mne operator, he is fighting for every
dollar of bottom line, he continued. It costs a trenendous

amount of noney to run a mning business correctly.

REPRESENTATI VE TARR responded that the purpose of her previous
coorment was to highlight that state regulations are sonething
the | egislature can actually change. She clarified she was not

referring to the overlapping jurisdiction issue, but is
interested in M. Powelson's thoughts about what could be
changed in state regul ation. She related that if M. Powel son

had other exanples simlar to the turbidity test kit, she would
be interested in hearing them

MR. PONELSON offered to follow up outside the neeting.
2:45: 33 PM

DOUG TWEET, Placer Mner, NB Tweet & Sons, stated he is a third
generation placer mner and opposes HB 253. He stated that from
t he perspective of a small placer mner, he understands the need
for the state to increase revenue, but he posited that this
legislation would lead to an overall decrease in revenue.
Specifically, it would harm the economc climte for new placer
mners, especially in rural areas where there is very little
econom c activity. He stated that for a new placer mner, the
process of acquiring financing is very difficult. Having a new
m ne exenption for 3.5 years is very inportant, because mners
get a return on their investnment right when they need it.

MR TWEET stated that increasing the tax from 7 percent to 9
percent would have a negative inpact as well; even though
$100, 000 sounds like a high threshold for that increase, it
isn't when there are several partners in a famly-oriented
part nershi p. For exanple, the large conpany in Nonme, None Gold

- formerly Alaska Gold - is struggling. It was not nmaki nhg noney
| ast year and he has heard it would be back next year but would
be significantly downsized. He explained that costs are
incredibly high in None. The Nome Port Commission recently
decided to raise tariffs on the port by 10 percent. Al t hough
still subject to city council approval, the Cty of Nonme needed
the revenue increase because activity has sl owed. Reiterating

the high costs in Nonme, he noted that fuel at the punp is around

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 30- February 19, 2016



$5.00 per gallon. He asked the committee to please consider not
lifting the 3.5-year exenption or raising the tax. He offered
that it is nore inportant to the state in general, as it wll
affect larger mnes trying to becone operational.

MR. TWEET said there is a large graphite deposit on the Seward
Peninsula, and with [ow comodity prices, junior conpanies are
having a hard time wth financing. One conpany has spent
approximately $12 mllion on exploration on the Seward Peninsul a
and has found the |argest deposit of high grade graphite in the
US. and potentially the world. The deposit is large enough
that it could drive the nmarket for 100 years. For the deposit
to be devel oped the conpany needs financing. The potential |oss
of the 3.5-year exenption and tax increase from 7 percent to 9
percent would negatively inpact the conpany's feasibility
studies and nmake financing the project even less Iikely. The
vast majority of clainms for graphite deposit are state clains,
he pointed out, which would result in a |arge production royalty
if the project ever canme to fruition. It would be wonderful for
the area to have a large mne. He concluded by stating he
under stands and appreciates the |legislative challenges of trying
to find revenue and bal anci ng the state budget.

2:50: 35 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON pointed out that this tax would apply only
to net incone. He inquired whether it would make a difference
to M. Tweet, as a small placer mner, for the tax to stay at 5
percent from $50,000 to $200, 000. He explained that in this
scenario the tax rate would still increase from 7 percent to 9
percent above $200,000. This would give the small miner, with a
net inconme of |ess than $200,000, a significant tax advantage.

MR. TWEET replied that would be hel pful in terns of his famly's
busi ness. H's business is organized as a limted liability
conpany (LLC) and all famly nenbers own a share. He said he is
a third-generation mner and his sons are fourth-generation
mners. This is their only source of incone and $200, 000 is not
that nmuch when divided three ways, he explained, but extending
the upper limt of the tax increase would be helpful in his
circunstance and for other small mners.

2:52:58 PM
GECRCE PIERCE stated that Alaska's mneral industry was worth

alnost $3 billion dollars in 2009 but paid |ess than 2 percent,
counting all forms of taxes, fees, and royalties to the state

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 31- February 19, 2016



and |ocal governnents. Taxes on other industries are nmuch
hi gher . The oil and gas industry paid about 20 percent of its
mar ket value, which is still the lowest in the world. The
fishing industry paid about 5 percent. Coal mning was also
about 5 percent. Wiile low taxes for mning are attractive to
corporations, sone organizations and |egislators argue that they
don't represent a fair, long-term value for Al askan resources,
particularly because the vast mmjority of mning corporations
are not Al askan. He inquired why, given that all Alaskans are
going to have to pay in the current budget circunstance,
resources should not also be taxed. Everyone should pay, he
opi ned. The state has had the sane mning tax since 1955, but
has visited the oil and gas taxes six tines in ten years. The
tax circunstance needs to be overhaul ed. M nes |eave a ness,
destroy habitat, and the damage is continuing. The resource is
non-r enewabl e. He inplored the conmttee to raise taxes on
Al aska's resources to get the best deal for Alaskans, and cited
the exanple of nunmerous abandoned mines in the state. He
posited that taxes should apply to gross income, not net incone.
He suggested the taxes be raised to 20 percent as with gas and
oil, or even higher. He said governnent exists to provide
services, and corporations exist to nmake noney. Al aska has the
best resources in the world and the | egislature gives breaks and
gives the state's resources away for dirt cheap. Al aska should
get the top dollar because its resources are the best, he said.
He concluded, "Do your job, let's fix the budget and raise the
taxes on mning."

2:55:53 PM

CO CHAIR TALERI CO asked if anyone else would like to testify.
[ No one cane forward. ]

[ HB 253 was hel d over. ]
2:56:16 PM
ADJ OURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Resources Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at 2:56 p. m

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 32- February 19, 2016



